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Dear Mr. Colomb:

On December 31 ,2010, the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) completed an

inspection at your Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station. The enclosed inspection report

documents the inspection results, which were discussed on January 24,2011, with Mr. Norman

Rademacher, Site Director of Engineering, and other members of your staff.

The inspection examined activities performed under your license as they relate to safety and

compliance with the Commission's rules and regulations, and with the conditions of your

license. The inspectors reviewed selected procedures and records, observed activities, and

interviewed personnel.

This report documents two NRC-identified findings of very low safety significa.nce (Green). Both

of these findings were determined to be violations of NRC requirements. Additionally, a

licensee-identified violation which was determined to be of very low safety significance is listed

in this report. However, because of the very low safety significance and because they are

entered into your corrective action program, the NRC is treating these findings, as non-cited

violations (NbU consistent with Section2.3.2.a of the NRC's Enforcement Policy. lf you

contest any finding in this report, you should provide a response within 30 days of the date of

this inspeition refort, with the baiis for your denial, to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission,

ATTN: bocumeni Control Desk, Washington, DC 20555-0001; with copies to the Regional

Administrator Region l; the Director, Office of Enforcement, United States Nuclear Regulatory

Commission, Waihington, DC 20555-OOO1, and the NRC Senior Resident Inspector at Vermont
yankee. In addition, it you disagree with the characterization of the cross-cutting aspect of any

finding in this report, you should provide a response within 30 days of the date of this inspection

reportl with the basisior your disagreement, to the Regional Administrator, Region l, and the

NRC Senior Resident Inspector at Vermont Yankee. The information you provide will be

considered in accordance with lnspection Manual Chapter 0305.

ln accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter, its

enclosure, and your response (if any) will be available electronically for pubtic inspection in the
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NRC Public Document Room or from the Publicly Available Records (PARS) component of the
NRC's document system (ADAMS). ADAMS is accessible from the NRC Web Site at
http://www.nrc.qov/readino-rm/adams.html (the Public Electronic Reading Room).

Donald E. Jackson, Chief
Projects Branch 5
Division of Reactor Projects

Docket No. 50-271
License Nos. DPR-28

Enclosure: Inspection Report No. 0500027112010005
w/ Attachment: Supplemental Information

cc Mencl: Distribution via ListServ

Sincerely,

&il
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SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

lR 05000271/2010005; 1010112010 - 1213112010; Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station;
ldentification and Resolution of Problems.

This report covered a three-month period of inspection by resident inspectors, regional-based
inspectors, headquarters-based inspectors, and a regional health physics inspector. Two NRC-
identified non-cited violations (NCVs), and one licensee-identified violation of very low safety
significance (Green) were identified. The significance of most findings is indicated by their color
(Green, White, Yellow, Red) using lnspection Manual Chapter (lMC) 0609, "Significance
Determination Process" (SDP). Findings for which the SDP does not apply may be Green or be
assigned a severity level after NRC management review. Cross-cutting aspects associated
with findings are determined using IMC 0310, "Components Within the Cross-Cutting Areas."
The NRC's program for overseeing the safe operation of commercial nuclear power reactors is

described in NUREG-1649, "Reactor Oversight Process," Revision 4, dated December 2006.

Cornerstone: Mitigating Systems

. Green. The inspectors identified a non-cited violation (NCV) of 10 CFR 50, Appendix B,

Criterion X, "lnspection," for the failure to ensure that Quality Control verification
inspections were consistently included and correctly specified in quality-affecting
procedures and work instructions for construction-like work activities as required by the
Quality Assurance Program. Entergy initiated prompt fleet-wide corrective actions to
ensure proper work order evaluation and proper inclusion of Quality Control verification
inspections. This issue was entered into the corrective action program as condition
reports (CR) CR-HQN 2009-01184 and CR-HQN-2O10-0013.

The failure to ensure that adequate Quality Control verification inspections were included
in quality-affecting procedures and work instructions as required by the Quality
Assurance Program was a performance deficiency. This issue was more than minor
because, if left uncorrected, it could lead to a more significant safety concern; in that, the
failure to check quality attributes could involve an actual impact to plant equipment. This
issue affected the Design Control attribute of the Mitigating Systems cornerstone
because missed or improper quality control inspections during plant modifications could
impact the availability, reliability, and capability of systems needed to respond to
initiating events. This performance deficiency was determined to be of very low safety
significance (Green), since it was confirmed to involve a qualification deficiency that did
not result in a loss of operability or functionality. The inspectors determined that this
issue had a cross-cutting aspect in the Human Performance cross-cutting area,
Decision-Making component, because the licensee did not have an effective systematic
process for obtaining interdisciplinary reviews of proposed work instructions to determine
whether Quality Controlverification inspections were appropriate tH.1(a)1. (Section
4c.A2)

o Green. The inspectors identified an NCV of 10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion ll,
"Quality Assurance Program," for the failure to implement the experience and
qualification requiiements of the Quality Assurance Program. As a result, the licensee
failed to ensure that two individuals assigned to the position of Quality Assurance
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Manager met the qualification and experience requirements of ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978 as
required by the Quality Assurance Program. Specifically, the individual assigned to be
the responsible person for the licensee's overall implementation of the Quality
Assurance Program did not have at least one year of nuclear plant experience in the
overall implementation of the Quality Assurance Program within the quality assurance
organization prior to assuming those responsibilities. This issue was entered into the
corrective action program as CR-HQN-201 0-00386.

The failure to ensure that an individual assigned to the position of Quality Assurance
Manager met the qualification and experience requirements of ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978 as
required by the Quality Assurance Program was a performance deficiency. This issue
was more than minor because, if left uncorrected, it could create a more significant
safety concern. The failure to have a fully qualified individual providing overall oversight
to the Quality Assurance Program had the potential to affect all cornerstones, but the
inspectors determined that this finding will be tracked under the Mitigating Systems
cornerstone as the area most likely to be impacted. The issue was not suitable for
quantitative assessment using existing NRC Significance Determination Process (SDP)
guidance, so it was determined to be of very low safety significance (Green) using NRC
Inspection Manual Chapter (lMC) 0609, Appendix M, "Significance Determination
Process Using Qualitative Criteria." The inspectors determined that there was no cross-
cutting aspect associated with this finding because this issue was not indicative of
current performance as it occurred more than three years ago. (Section 4OA2)

Other Findinqs

A violation of very low safety significance, which was identified by the licensee, has been
reviewed by the inspectors. Corrective actions taken or planned by the licensee have
been entered into the licensee's corrective action program. The violation and corrective
action tracking numbers are,listed in Section 4OA7.
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REPORT DETAILS

Summarv of Plant Status

Vermont Yankee (W) Nuclear Power Station began the inspection period operating at 100
percent power. On November 6, 2010, W performed a planned power reduction to 49 percent
for control rod scram time testing, feed pump maintenance, and main steam isolation valve
testing. W increased power to 80 percent the same day and held there to support electrical
grid maintenance. On November7,2010, W commenced an unplanned shutdown from 80
percent to repair a leak on a feedwater header pipe. W commenced plant start-up on
November 10,2010, returned to 100 percent power on November 16, 2010, and remained at or
near 100 percent power for the remainder of the inspection period.

1. REACTORSAFETY

Cornerstones: Initiating Events, Mitigating Systems, Barrier lntegrity

1R01 Adverse Weather Protection (71111.01)

External Floodinq Readiness

Insoection Scope (1 sample)

The inspectors reviewed W's flood protection barriers and procedures for coping with
externalflooding in the emergency diesel generator rooms. The inspectors reviewed
externalflooding information contained in the Updated Final Safety Analysis Report
(UFSAR) and compared it to the actions specified in Entergy operating procedure (OP)
3127, "Natural Phenomena," Revision 26. The inspectors performed walkdowns of the
emergency diesel generator rooms, switchgear rooms, and intake structure, and
examined the equipment specified in the OP (sump pumps, floor drain plugs, etc.) to
determine if it was available for use. The inspectors also reviewed a sample of external
flooding-related conditions identified in W's corrective action program (CAP) to
determine if they were appropriately identified and corrected. The documents reviewed
are listed in the Attachment.

Findinqs

No findings were identified.

Seasonal Susceptibilitv

Inspection Scope (1 sample)

The inspectors reviewed Entergy's procedures for seasonal preparations to evaluate the
process for implementation of cold weather preparedness. The inspectors reviewed
adverse weather information contained in the External Events Design Basis Document
and compared it to the actions specified in OP 2196, "Seasonal Preparedness,"

a.

b.

a.

.2
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Revision 31. The inspectors interviewed operators, performed a walkdown of the
condensate storage tank areas, emergency diesel generators and intake structure, and
examined the equipment specified in the OP to determine if equipment readiness was
maintained to meet the onset of cold weather conditions. The inspectors also reviewed
a sample of seasonal preparedness-related condition reports identified in Entergy's CAP
to determine if they were appropriately identified and corrected. The documents
reviewed are listed in the Attachment.

b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.

1 R04 Equipment Alionment (71111.04)

.1 Partial Equipment Aliqnment (71111.04O)

a. lnspection Scope (1 sample)

The inspectors performed a partial system walkdown of the service water system while
the reactor core isolation cooling system was out of service to verify correct system
alignment, and to identify any discrepancies that could impact system operability.
Observed plant conditions were compared to the alignment of equipment specified in

applicable piping and instrumentation drawings (P&lDs) and operating procedures. The
inspectors observed valve positions, power supply availability, and the general condition
of selected components. Finally, the inspectors evaluated material condition,
housekeeping, and component labeling. The documents reviewed are listed in the
Attachment.

b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.

.2 Complete Equipment Aliqnment (71111.04S)

a. Inspection Scope (2 samples)

The inspectors performed a complete equipment alignment inspection of the accessible
portions of the residual heat removal system train 'B', and of the reactor core isolation
cooling system. The inspectors compared the actual system configuration to approved
drawings, the UFSAR, and operating procedures. Through a system walkdown, the
inspectors evaluated whether major system components were properly ventilated;
hangers and supports were correctly installed and functional; electrical power was
available; ancillary equipment was placed so it would not interfere with the operation of
system valves; and deficiencies had been entered into the CAP. The inspectors also
assessed housekeeping and component labeling. In addition, the inspectors reviewed
the system health reports for each system, evaluated a sample of previously identified
deficiencies to determine if they had been properly addressed, and discussed open
items with the responsible system engineers to determine if they impacted system
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operability. The inspectors performed a search of the CAP for equipment alignment
problems to verify that Entergy was identifying problems at an appropriate threshold and
resolving them appropriately. Documents reviewed are listed in the Attachment.

b. Findinos

No findings were identified.

1R05 Fire Protection (71111.05)

Quarterlv Inspection (7 1 1 1 1 .05O)

a. Inspection Scope (3 samples)

The inspectors performed inspections of three fire areas based on a review of the W
Safe Shutdown Capability Analysis and the Fire Hazards Analysis. The inspectors
reviewed Entergy's fire protection program to determine the specified fire protection
design features, fire area boundaries, and combustible loading requirements for the
selected areas. During walkdowns of the fire areas, the inspectors verified that
combustibles and ignition sources were adequately controlled and passive fire barriers,
manual fire-fighting equipment, and detection and suppression equipment were
appropriately maintained. The inspectors evaluated the fire protection program for
conformance with the requirements of License Condition 3.F. The documents reviewed
are listed in the Attachment. The following fire areas were inspected:

. Control Room, FZ ASD-1;

. Reactor Core lsolation Cooling Corner Room, FA RCIC; and
r Reactor Building Elevation 252' North, FZ RB-3.

b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.

1R06 Flood Protection Measures (71 11 1.06)

Underoround Bunkers/Manholes Subiect to Floodinq

a. Inspection Scope (1 sample)

The inspectors completed one flood protection measures inspection sample. The
inspectors evaluated the condition of safety-related cables located in underground
manholes. Specifically, the inspectors directly inspected conditions in manholes MH-
OG1, MH-OG?, HH-32A and HH-37A which contain safety-related and Maintenance
Rule system cables. The inspectors examined the integrity of cables and the condition
of cable support structures. In addition, the inspectors evaluated items entered in the
licensee's CAP relating to conditions discovered during the manhole inspections;
assessed whether the conditions had any adverse impact on operability; and determined
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whether appropriate corrective actions were planned. The documents reviewed are
listed in the Attachment.

b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.

1R1 1 Licensed Operator Requalification Proqram (71111.11)

Quarterlv Inspection (7 11 11. 1 1 O)

a. lnspection Scope (1 sample)

The inspectors observed control room crew performance during an emergency
preparedness drill on October 20,2010. The inspectors assessed the performance of
risk significant operator actions, including the use of emergency operating procedures.
The inspectors evaluated crew performance in the areas of clarity and formality of
communications; ability to take timely actions; prioritization, interpretation, and
verification of alarms; procedure usage; control board manipulations; and command and
control. The inspectors also compared the simulator configuration with the actual control
room configuration. Finally, the inspectors verified that evaluators were identifying and
documenting crew performance problems. The documents reviewed are listed in the
Attachment.

b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.

1R12 Maintenance Effectiveness (71111.12)

Quarterlv Inspection (7 1 1 1 1 .124)

a. Inspection Scope (1 sample)

The inspectors conducted an in-office review of the process radiation monitoring system
for items such as: (1) appropriate work practices; (2) identifying and addressing common
cause failures; (3) scoping in accordance with 10 CFR 50.65 paragraph (b) of the
Maintenance Rule; (4) characterizing reliability issues for performance; (5) trending key
parameters for condition monitoring; (6) balancing reliability and unavailability
(performance); (7) charging unavailability for performance; (8) classification and
reclassification in accordance with 10 CFR 50.65 paragraph (aX1 ) or (a)(2); and
(9) appropriateness of performance criteria for structures, systems, and components
(SSCs) and functions classified as paragraph (aX2). The inspectors discussed
observations with the system engineer and maintenance representatives. The
documents reviewed are listed in the Attachment.
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b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.

1R13 Maintenance Risk Assessments and Emerqent Work Control (71111.13)

a. Inspection Scope (2 samples)

The inspectors evaluated two maintenance risk assessments for planned and emergent
maintenance activities to verify that the appropriate risk assessments were performed
prior to removing equipment for work. The inspectors reviewed maintenance risk
evaluations, maintenance plans, work schedules, and control room logs to determine if
concurrent or emergent maintenance or surveillance activities significantty increased the
plant risk. The inspectors reviewed risk assessments to determine if they were
performed as required by 10 CFR 50.65 paragraph (aX4) and implemented in
accordance with Entergy's administrative procedures (AP) 0125, "Plant Equipment," and
AP 0172,"Work Schedule Risk Management - Online." The inspectors conducted plant
walkdowns to verify that appropriate risk management actions had been taken. The
documents reviewed are listed in the Attachment. The following maintenance activities
were inspected:

. Vernon tie-line transformer replacement; and
o Emergent work on the uninterruptible power supply (UPS) battery and the average

power range monitors.

b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.

1R15 Operabilitv Evaluations (71111.15)

a. Inspection Scope (3 samples)

The inspectors reviewed three operability evaluations associated with degraded or non-
conforming conditions to assess the acceptability of the evaluations, the use and control
of applicable compensatory measures, and compliance with Technical Specifications.
The inspectors reviewed and compared the technical adequacy of the evaluations with
the Technical Specifications, UFSAR, associated design basis documents, and
Entergy's procedure EN-OP-104, "Operability Determinations." The documents
reviewed are listed in the Attachment. The inspectors reviewed evaluations of the
following degraded or non-conforming conditions:

. CR 2010-05062, "Residual Heat Removal (RHR) "A" Side Heat Exchange Arcor
Coating Removal;"

o CR 2010-2187, "Safety Relief Valves Removed During Refueling Outage (RFO 28)
Bench Testing Revealed Minor Diaphragm Air Leakages;" and
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. CR 2010-05269, " The Temperature Corrected Life Expectancy of Both UPS
Batteries May Not Be Conservative."

b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.

1R19 Post-Maintenance Testinq (71111.19)

a. Inspection Scope (4 samples)

The inspectors reviewed four post-maintenance test (PMT) activities on risk-significant
systems. The inspectors reviewed these activities to determine whether test acceptance
criteria were clear and consistent with design basis documents. When testing was
directly observed, the inspectors determined whether installed test equipment was
appropriate and controlled, and whether the test was performed in accordance with
10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion Xl, "Test Control," and applicable station
procedures. Upon completion, the inspectors performed a walkdown to verify that
equipment was returned to the proper alignment necessary to perform its safety function,
and evaluated whether conditions adverse to quality were entered into the CAP for
resolution. The documents reviewed are listed in the Attachment. The inspectors
reviewed the PMTs performed for the following maintenance activities:

. On October 18-22, 2010, reactor core isolation cooling turbine inspection and flow
controller replacement;

. On November 4,2010, "A" residual heat removal (RHR) planned maintenance;

. On November 9, 2010, high pressure coolant injection system steam line drain line
repair; and

. On November 30, 2010, "D" APRM power supply replacement.

b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.

1R20 Refuelino and Outaqe Activities (71111.20)

a. Inspection Scope (1 sample)

For the forced outage that began on November 7,2010, the inspectors evaluated
Entergy's outage activities as described below to verify they adhered to technical
specification (TS) requirements and managed outage risk.

Inspection activities performed included:

r Monitoring shutdown activities by observing portions of the power reduction and
cooldown process from the control room;

. lnspecting the status and configuration of electrical systems to ensure that TSs and
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outage risk requirements were met, and controls over switchyard activities were
appropriate;

o Monitoring the status of the decay heat removal system, and checking the alignment
of the alternate system;

. Observing portions of startup and ascension to full power operation and tracking
startup prereq uisites;

o Inspecting station personnel identification and resolution of problems related to
forced outage activities; and

. Reviewing work hours for fatigue concerns.

The documents reviewed are listed in the Attachment.

b. Findinos

No findings were identified.

1R22 Surveillance Testinq (71111.22)

a. Inspection Scope (2 samples)

The inspectors observed two surveillance tests and reviewed test data of selected risk-
significant structures, systems and components (SSCs) to determine whether the testing
adequately demonstrated equipment operational readiness and the ability to perform the
intended safety functions" The inspectors reviewed selected prerequisites and
precautions to determine if they were met; evaluated whether the tests were performed
in accordance with the written procedure; determined whether the test data was
complete and met procedural requirements; and assessed whether SSCs were properly
returned to service following testing. The inspectors also verified that conditions adverse
to quality were entered into the CAP for resolution. The documents reviewed are listed
in the Attachment. The inspectors reviewed the following surveillance tests:

o High pressure coolant injection quarterly surveillance; and
. Control rod scram time testing.

b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.
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Cornerstone: Radiation Safety

2RS8 Radioactive Solid Waste Processing and Radioactive Material Handling, Storage and
Transportation (71 124.08 - 1 sample)

a. Inspection Scope

During the period October 18 through 22, 2010, the inspector conducted the following
activities to verify that the licensee's radioactive material processing and transportation
programs complied with the requirements of 10 CFR Parts 20, 61 , and71; and
Department of Transportation (DOT) regulations 49 CFR Parts 170-189.

. The inspector reviewed the solid radioactive waste system description in the UFSAR,
the 2009 radiological effluent release report for information on the types and
amounts of radioactive waste disposed, and the scope of the licensee's audit
program to verify that it meets the requirements of 10 CFR 20.1101.

. The inspector reviewed several areas where radioactive materials were stored and
verified their controls and posting in accordance with 10 CFR Part20. All such
radioactive materials were secured against unauthorized removal. Containers of
stored radioactive materials were observed to verify their material condition in

accordance with procedural requirements.

. The inspector performed a walkdown of the liquid and solid radioactive waste
processing systems to verify and assess that the current system configuration and
operation agree with the descriptions contained in the UFSAR and in the Process
Control Program (PCP); reviewed the status of any radioactive waste process
equipment that is not operational and/or is abandoned in place; and verified that the
changes were reviewed and documented in accordance with 10 CFR 50.59, as
appropriate. The inspector reviewed the current processes for recirculating,
transferring and dewatering of radioactive waste resin and sludge discharges into
shipping/disposal containers to determine if appropriate waste stream mixing and/or
sampling procedures, and methodology for waste concentration averaging provide
representative samples of the waste product for the purposes of waste classification
as specified in 10 CFR 61.55 for waste disposal.

o The inspector reviewed the radio-chemical sample analysis results for each of the
licensee's radioactive waste streams; reviewed the licensee's use of scaling factors
and calculations with respect to these radioactive waste streams to account for
difficult-to-measure radionuclides; verified that the licensee's program assures
compliance with 10 CFR 61.55 and 10 CFR 61.56 as required by Appendix G of 10
CFR Part 20; and reviewed the licensee's quality assurance program to ensure that
the waste stream composition data accounts for changing operational parameters
and thus remains valid between the annual or biennial sample analysis update.

r The inspector observed one radioactive material shipment and one exempt quantity
water tanker shipment during the week of October 18 through 22, 2010, to include
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the following shipment preparation activities: packaging, surveying, labeling,
marking, placarding, vehicle checks, emergency instructions, disposal manifests,
shipping papers provided to the driver, and licensee verification of shipment
readiness.

. The inspector sampled the following radioactive material shipment records and
reviewed these records for compliance with NRC and DOT requirements:

r 2009-61;
. 2009-71;

i iziz,rZ';,
. 2010-13,4:
. 2Q10-136 (excepted package); and

2010-138 (excepted package).

. The inspector reviewed the licensee's event reports, special reports, audits, state
agency reports, and self-assessments related to the radioactive material and
transportation programs performed since the last inspection and determined that
identified problems are entered into the CAP for resolution. The inspector also
reviewed CRs written against the radioactive material and shipping programs since
the previous inspection.

b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.

4. OTHER ACTTVTT|ES [OA]

4OA1 Performance lndicator (Pl) Verification (71151)

a. Inspection Scope (5 Samples)

Mitiqatinq Svstems Cornerstone

The inspectors sampled Entergy submittals for the three Mitigating Systems
Performance Index (MSPI) performance indicators (Pls) for the period from October 1,

2009, through September 30, 2010. The inspectors reviewed selected operator logs,
plant process computer data, licensee event reports, maintenance rule out of service
logs, criticality data, Consolidated Data Entry MSPI Derivation Reports for the
unavailability index and unreliability index for each system, monitored component
demands and demand failure data. The inspectors discussed the Pl data with
responsible system engineers and licensing personnel. The Pl definitions and guidance
contained in Nuclear Energy Institute (NEl) 99-02, "Regulatory Assessment Performance
Indicator Guideline," Revision 6, and AP 0094, "NRC Performance Indicator Reporting,"
were used to verify the accuracy and completeness of the Pl data reported during this
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period. Documents reviewed are listed in the Attachment. The following performance
indicators were inspected:

. MSPI, cooling water systems (MS10);

. MSPI, emergency AC power (MS06); and

. MSPI, residual heat removal system (MS09).

Occupational Exposure Control Effectiveness (ORO1 )

Additionally, the inspector reviewed implementation of the licensee's Occupational
Exposure Control Effectiveness Performance lndicator (Pl) Program. Specifically, the
inspector reviewed CRs and radiological controlled area dosimeter exit logs for the past
four calendar quarters (4th quarter 2009 through 3rd quarter 2010). These records were
reviewed for occurrences involving locked high radiation areas, very high radiation
areas, and unplanned exposures against the criteria specified in NEI 99-02, "Regulatory
Assessment Performance Indicator Guideline," Revision 6, to verify that all occurrences
that met the NEI criteria were identified and reported as performance indicators.

Radioloqical Effluent Technical Specification/Offsite Dose Calculation Manual (RETS)/
(ODCM) Radioloqical Effluent Occurrences - (PRO1)

The inspector reviewed a listing of relevant effluent release reports for the past four
calendar quarters (4th quarter 2009 through 3rd quarter 2010), for issues related to the
public radiation safety performance indicator, which measures radiological effluent
release occurrences per site that exceed 1.5 millirem (mrem)iquarter whole body or
5.0 mrem/quarter organ dose for liquid effluents; 5 mrads/quarter gamma air dose,
10 mrad/quarter beta air dose, and 7.5 mrads/quarter organ dose for gaseous effluents.
The review was against applicable criteria specified in NEI 99-02, "Regulatory
Assessment Performance Indicator Guideline," Revision 6. The purpose of the review
was to verify that occurrences that met the NEI criteria were recognized and identified as
Performance lndicator occurrences.

The inspector reviewed the following documents to ensure the licensee met all
requirements of the performance indicator:

o Monthly projected dose assessment results due to radioactive liquid and gaseous
effluent releases;

. Quarterly projected dose assessment results due to radioactive liquid and gaseous
effluent releases; and

. Dose assessment procedures.

Findinqs

No findings were identified.
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4OA2 ldentification and Resolution of Problems (71152)

.1 Reviews of ltems Entered into the Corrective Action Prooram

lnspection Scope

The inspectors performed a daily screening of each item entered into Entergy's CAP.
This review was accomplished by reviewing printouts of each CR, attending daily
screening meetings, and/or accessing Entergy's database. The purpose of this review
was to identify conditions such as repetitive equipment failures or human performance
issues that might warrant additional follow up.

Findinqs

No findings or observations were identified.

Semi-Annual Trend Review

Inspection Scope (1 sample)

The inspectors performed a semi-annual review of site issues, to identify trends that
might indicate the existence of more significant safety issues, as required by NRC
lnspection Procedure 71152, "ldentification and Resolution of Problems." The
inspectors included in this review repetitive or closely-related issues that may have been
documented by W outside of the corrective action program, such as trend reports,
performance indicators, major equipment problem lists, system health reports,
maintenance rule assessments, and maintenance or CAP backlogs. The inspectors also
reviewed the W CAP database for the third and fourth quarters of 2010, to assess
condition reports (CRs) written in various subject areas (equipment problems, human
performance issues, etc.), as well as individual issues identified during the NRCs daily
CR review (Section 4OA2.1). The inspectors reviewed the W quarterly trend report for
the third quarter o12010, conducted under EN-L|-121, "Entergy Trending Process",
Revision 8, to verify that W personnelwere appropriately evaluating and trending
adverse conditions in accordance with applicable procedures.

Findinqs and Observations

No findings were identified.

The inspectors observed that the documentation in condition reports of the frequent
automatic starts of the electric fire pump was not in accordance with EN-L|-102
"Corrective Action Process," Revision 16. This was brought to the attention of station
management and condition reports are now generated for all electric fire pump starts.

a.

b.

a.

.2

b.
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Annual Sample: Review of the Leak Detection Svstem

lnspection Scope (1 sample)

The inspectors selected CR-WY-2010-04134 as a sample for a detailed follow-up
review. CR-WY-2O10-04134 documented the identification of the drywell floor drain
sump pump-out timer found non-conservatively set at 2 minutes, which is above the
calculated setting of 1.5 minutes. This means that at this non-conservative setting, the
drywell floor drain sump pump-out timer would not alarm the annunciator in the control
room to alert operators to leakage in the drywell floor drain sump until leakage reached
9.9 gpm. The issue was identified by inspectors. The inspectors assessed Entergy's
operability determination, extent of condition review, and the prioritization and timeliness
of corrective actions. The review was conducted to determine whether Entergy
personnel were appropriately identifying, characterizing, a nd correcting problems
associated with these issues, and whether the planned or completed corrective actions
were appropriate to prevent recurrence. Additionally, the inspectors interviewed
operators and engineering personnel. The documents reviewed are listed in the
Attachment.

Findinqs and Observations

No findings or observations were identified.

Annual Sample: Service Water Svstem Inteqritv

Inspection Scope (1 sample)

A problem identification and resolution (Pl&R) sample inspection was conducted during
the period October 25 through 29,2010. The purpose of the inspection was to assess
the effectiveness of actions taken by the licensee to identify, characterize, correct, and
prevent reoccurrence of problems which could impact cornerstone objectives. The
problem identified for evaluation was pinhole leakage discovered in various locations
adjacent to field welds made during original system installation of the service water (SW)
supply and return lines to the spent fuel pool cooling (SFPC) system.

The inspector selected CRs 2009-00500, 00238 and 01696 that identified a number of
small (pinhole) leaks in the service water (SW) supply and return lines to the SFPC.
Also, CRs which identified non-conforming corrosion control chemical treatment
activities are noted in the Attachment to this report.

The inspector selected a sample of nondestructive examination (NDE) activities to
perform a documentation review of those activities for compliance with the requirements
of the American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME) Boiler and Pressure Vessel
Code. The inspector reviewed two ultrasonic tests (UT) and two radiographic test (RT)
reports. The sample selection was based on a review of the fabrication weld population

to assure the sample was representative of identical or similar operational variables to
those locations where leakage occurred. The inspector noted the samples selected for
extent of condition evaluation were of the same materials of construction and were within

Enclosure
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the same system (exhibited same or similar temperature, pressure, media, and flow) as
those portions of pipe which exhibited leakage. The inspector verified these though
documentation reviews that the tests specified were appropriate for the volumetric
examination of the welds and heat affected zones at the failed locations. In addition, the
inspector performed this review to determine that nonconforming indications were
appropriately identified, characterized, documented, and entered into the CAP.

The licensee performed a sample examination in accordance with ASME Code Case
N-513-2, "Evaluation Criteria for Temporary Acceptance of Flaws in Moderate Energy
Class 2 or 3 Piping Section Xl, Division 1." This examination process required an
expansion of sample as each lot was examined until no significant flaw(s) were detected,
or until 100 percent of susceptible and accessible locations have been examined. Six
sample lots were inspected and calculations performed which found the flaw locations to
be acceptable.

Findinqs and Observations

No findings were identified.

The inspector noted that during the extent of condition examination, the licensee
performed appropriate reportability and operability assessments. The piping leaks were
determined to be not reportable and the SFPC system was determined to be operable.
This determination was supported by engineering evaluation and analytical analysis.
The inspector noted that as a result of the extent of condition examinations required by
ASME Code Case N-513-2, examination of system butt welds revealed several flawed
locations within the heat affected zone of those welds.

The leaks were found to be in the heat affected zone of butt welds joining the stainless
steel (304) pipe. These welds were made during original construction and during a
period when modifications were made to the system to provide additional cooling
capacity for periods when abnormally high decay heat loads are placed in the spent fuel
pool or subsequent to a seismic event. Also, the modifications were designed to support
the use of high density fuel storage racks in the spent fuel pool. The SFPC system is

not governed by Technical Specifications.

A failure analysis was performed by the licensee on selected locations which exhibited
leakage to determine the failure mechanism resulting in the pinholes. The results of this
analysis revealed that failure had occurred from Microbiological Influenced Corrosion
(MlC) activity in the heat affected zone (HAZ) of the original stainless steel system
fabrication welds. The analysis revealed that the sensitization in the weld HAZ had
occurred as the result of the heat input of welding. The sensitization process degraded
the corrosion resistance of the material at those locations rendering the area susceptible
to intergranular stress corrosion cracking and MlC. The pinhole corrosion failure was
the result of the MIC attack. Microbiological organisms were provided by the service
water periodically when corrosion inhibitor concentrations in the SW were less than
adequate to suppress biological attack.
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As a result of these examinations, the licensee concluded that replacement of the entire
system with an alternate material and enhancements to the corrosion control system
was the appropriate course of action. The licensee selected carbon steelfor the
replacement material supplemented with more frequent chemical treatment. The
replacement material will eliminate the sensitization phenomena of stainless steel in the
heat affected zones of welded locations and more effective chemical treatment will
reduce aggressive corrosion activity. In addition, piping configuration changes will
enable better system drainage and elimination of stagnant locations where treatment is
ineffective. Piping replacement was completed in February 2010.

Annual Sample: Review of Low Cell Voltaqes for B-UPS-1A and B-UPS,1B Batteries

Inspection Scope (1 sample)

The inspectors performed a focused review of the actions taken and planned in
response to the repeated observation of cells with low individual cell voltages (lCVs) in
the B-UPS-1A and B-UPS-18 batteries. The inspectors interviewed system and design
engineers to understand the history of the low lCVs, and to assess Entergy's evaluation
and corrective actions. The inspectors performed a walkdown of the B-UPS-1A and B-
UPS-18 batteries to assess the material condition of the battery cells and to evaluate the
adequacy of maintenance for the batteries. The inspectors reviewed work orders,
surveillance procedures, and surveillance results to verify that testing and maintenance
are being performed in accordance with technical specifications, vendor instructions, and
industry standards. The inspectors also reviewed CRs and corrective actions for the
past three years to independently verify the operability of the B-UPS-1A and B-UPS-1B
batteries. Documents reviewed are listed in the Attachment.

Findinqs and Observations

No findings were identified.

The inspectors determined that Entergy is adequately evaluating, trending, and
correcting issues related to low lCVs for the B-UPS-1A and B-UPS-1B batteries. The
inspectors reviewed a detailed evaluation of the material condition of the batteries
performed by the battery vendor in 2008. The inspectors also reviewed the vendor's
response to the current conditions. The inspectors determined that Entergy is
adequately operating the battery cells in accordance with vendor recommendations.
The inspectors observed that Entergy is formally evaluating the low ICV cells using the
operationaldecision making issue (ODMI) process. The low ICV ODMI increases the
monitoring of cells with low lCVs and sets thresholds to take action prior to the cells
becoming inoperable. The inspectors determined that Entergy is adequately monitoring
low ICV cells in accordance with the ODMI process to ensure that they remain above the
technical specification limits. Finally, the inspectors noted that Entergy is proactively
replacing cells with low lCVs prior to reaching the established limits.

a.

b.
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Sample: Corrective Action Review of Radwaste Transoortation Inspection (71 124.08)

Inspection Scope (71124.08) (1 sample)

The inspector reviewed five corrective action condition reports that were initiated
between October 2008 and October 2010 and were associated with the radwaste
transportation program. The inspector verified that problems identified by these CRs
were properly characterized in the licensee's event reporting system, and that applicable
causes and corrective actions were identified commensurate with the safety significance
of the radiological occurrences.

Findinqs and Observations

No findings or observations were identified.

Selected lssue Follow-up lnspection

Inspection Scope

An inspection was performed at the Entergy corporate office in Jackson, Mississippi on
June 14 through 17,2010, to review the circumstances surrounding missed quality
control (QC) verification inspections documented in CR-HQN-2009-01184 and
CR-HQN-2O10-00013. The issue involved QC verification inspections performed during
construction-related activities which were required as part of the Entergy quality
oversight and verification programs. The inspection was performed to determine if the
licensee had taken corrective actions commensurate with the significance of the
identified issues, and to assess the impact, if any, on the operability of plant equipment
caused by the missed inspections. This inspection was conducted by inspectors from
Regions l, ll, and lV, as well as a Senior Program Engineer from the Quality and Vendor
Branch of the Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation (NRR). The inspection covered all
NRC-licensed sites owned by Entergy Operations, lnc., including Arkansas Nuclear One,
James A. Fitzpatrick, Grand Gulf Nuclear Station, lndian Point Units 2 and 3, Palisades
Plant, Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station, River Bend Station, Vermont Yankee, and
Waterford 3.

The inspectors reviewed root cause analyses documented in CR-HQN-2009-01184 and
CR-HQN-2O10-00013, and the results of the licensee's extent of condition reviews and
plant impact assessments. The inspectors also independently assessed the potential
impacts of the missed inspections on the operability of plant equipment by reviewing all
of the examples identified by the licensee, and by independently reviewing completed
modifications and work orders to identify additional examples. The inspectors also
reviewed the corrective action database to assess reported equipment failures in order
to assess whether the failure might have involved missed QC verification inspections.

The inspectors assessed causal factors that may have contributed to missing QC
verification inspections. This assessment included reviewing the Entergy Quality
Assurance Program Manual (OAPM) requirements, changes made to the QAPM, and

b.

a.
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the level of agreement between the QAPM and its implementing procedures.
Documents reviewed are listed in the attachment.

b. Findinqs

Backoround: The inspectors identified problems with the implementation of elements of
the Quality Assurance (QA) Program that affected the fleet of Entergy Operations Inc.,
(hereafter referred to as "Entergy") nuclear power plants that are licensed by the NRC.
White the plant organizations are NRC licensees, Entergy also has corporate groups
which are not NRC licensees that are actively involved in some activities affecting sites,
including program and procedure changes. Entergy adopted a business strategy of
adopting standard programs and procedures at all fleet plants.

On October 30, 2009, the NRC discussed with Entergy the initial concerns about
whether QC verification inspections were being performed consistently for the types of
work that require that level of inspection. Both the non-licensed and licensed Entergy
organizations responded with an appropriate review of the issues. Entergy's review of
work documents that were potentially affected was extensive at each site. Entergy's
total review examined over 320 Engineering Change documents and 2676 Work Orders.
Of the 30 Work Orders identified to have QC verification inspection deficiencies affecting
eight safety-related design changes, all 30 were determined by Entergy to have
sufficient documentation to provide confidence that the equipment was installed
correctly. Specific corrective actions were identified and implemented to ensure that QC
verification inspections would be included in current and future work documents,
including procedure enhancements.

The information provided to the NRC was used to perform a focused inspection in order
to assess the impact of the missed verification inspections at each of the NRC-licensed
facilities. The inspection documented below independently assessed the potential
impact of missed QC verification inspections on the operability of plant equipment, as
well as assessing details of QA Program for the Entergy fleet.

Two findings were identified during this inspection. These findings involved missed QC
verification inspections at seven Entergy sites, and the assignment of individuals to the
QA Manager position that did not meet the experience and qualification requirements at
eight sites. Only the findings impacting Vermont Yankee are described below.

The inspectors concluded that the Entergy fleet organizational structure and Entergy
strategy of adopting standardized procedures across the fleet were contributing factors
to the findings. Specifically:

. Changes to adopt the standard fleet QA program created a partial conflict with
existing requirements for worker qualifications at some sites. The process for
creating and revising standardized fleet procedures and programs used to meet
NRC requirements must ensure that site-specific regulatory requirements and
commitments are properly addressed for all sites.
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. Changes that removed details from existing site-specific QA and QC program
implementing procedures while shifting to standardized fleet procedures
contributed to the finding involving missed QC verification inspections. CRs at
individual sites regarding problems related to this issue were not recognized
collectively as symptoms of a problem with these procedures because they were
addressed at the site level.

Failure to Perform Required Qualitv Control Inspections

lntroduction: The inspectors identified a Green, NCV of 10 CFR 50, Appendix B,

Criterion X, "lnspection," for the failure to ensure that Quality Control verification
inspections were included in quality-affecting procedures and work instructions for
construction-like work activities as required by the Quality Assurance Program.

Description: In response to the inspectors' request for information concerning
implementation of the quality oversight and verification programs, the licensee
performed a review of a representative sample of engineering changes and work order
tasks issued between 2006 and 2009. The licensee's review included performing
equipment walkdowns, evaluating rework rates and human error rates, and causes for
failures of significant components. Based on the results of these reviews, Entergy
initiated CRs at the various sites to document problems with Quality Control (QC)
verification activities and failures to perform required QC reviews of safety-related
engineering changes and construction related work activities. Entergy's investigation
concluded that procedures contained inadequate guidance, which resulted in

inconsistent implementation of the QC Program. Specifically, some safety-related
design change work orders were not reviewed to determine whether QC verification
inspections were required, and some safety-related design change work orders did not
include all required QC verification inspections. These examples were documented in

CR-HQN-2009-01083, -01084, -01085, -01093, -01096, -01140, -01169, -01170, -
01184, and -01188.

Additional findings identified by Entergy's review included:

. Managers in maintenance organizations did not have a detailed understanding of
QC responsibilities, required inspections, or what documents required review
(cR HQN-2009-01150).

r A weakness was identified in the process for ensuring proper approval of
contract QC inspection personnel at all Entergy sites. Procedure EN-QV-111,
"Training and Certification of lnspectioniverification and examination Personnel,"
Section 4.0 [1], required that the Manager responsible for Quality Assurance or
designee at each location is responsible for approving ANSI N45.2.6 certification
of QC inspection personnel. In practice, contract QC inspectors'qualifications
were not approved by the QA Manager prior to November of 2009. This was
determined to be a minor violation because the ANSI Level lll inspector at each
site was documenting that the contract QC personnel had the necessary
qualifications to perform the inspections for which they were contracted. This
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issue was entered into the licensee's corrective action program as CR-HQN-
2009-1 091.

At individual Entergy plants, 27 condition reports were written in 2008 and 2009
to document potentially missed QC verification inspections or missed reviews to
consider QC verification inspections prior to the NRC engaging Entergy on this
issue. Of those, seven were actual missed inspections (CR-RBS-2009-05041,
CR-JAF-2008-03648, and CR-PNP-2008-0091 6 and CR-PNP-2008-03922, CR-
PNP-2009-0 1 798, CR-PNP-2009-02059, and CR-PNP-2009-02255). Multiple
condition reports documented work package quality issues that impacted the
ability to identify appropriate QC verification inspection requirements.

Two examples of QC programmatic issues were identified, assigned by Entergy
headquarters, and not properly addressed (CR-ANO-C-2009-01884, and
CR-HQN-2009-00178). These were considered examples of the violation
discussed below.

. River Bend Station was using notification points instead of designating specific
QC hold points (CR-RBS-2008-04685).

r Insufficient resources were assigned or qualified to perform the required tasks at
Grand Gulf Nuclear Station and River Bend Station. River Bend Station operated
with a single QC Level ll inspector for more than 3 years, and Grand Gulf
Nuclear Station's two QC inspectors did not have all of the discipline
certifications for which they were conducting inspections (CR-HON-2009-01 140
and CR GGN-2009-06575). While these conditions were inappropriate, the
inspectors did not identify a separate violation associated with these issues. To
the extent that the individuals at River Bend Station were evaluating work
documents for QC verification inspections and not correctly identifying those
verifications, those examples are part of the violation discussed below.

. Although equipment-related QC condition reports were addressed appropriately,
QC programmatic issues were not always effectively addressed.

o QA audits and oversight activities for the QC Program missed opportunities to
identify the findings of their investigation (CR-HQN-2009-01169, CR-HQN-2009-
0153, and CR-HQN-2010-00013). ln particular, the Entergy corporate ANSI
Level lll inspector was required to perform periodic surveillances of QC
inspection activities to ensure the program is being adequately implemented and
maintained, but these required surveillances were not performed in 2008
(CR-HON-2009-001 11). This is further discussed in Section 4OA7.

Subsequent to the identification of these deficiencies, Entergy initiated prompt corrective
actions to ensure that appropriate safety-related, engineering changes and non-routine
maintenance work orders were identified and routed to the Maintenance Inspection
Coordinator for evaluation and inclusion of QC verification inspections in accordance
with the revised requirements of procedure EN-WM-105, "Planning." These corrective
actions and actions to preclude recurrence were collectively documented in the following
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actions and actions to preclude recurrence were collectively documented in the following
Level A condition reports: CR-HQN 2009-01 184, dated December 21, 2009, and CR-
HQN-2010-0013, dated January 6, 2010.

In-office NRC reviews identified the need to conduct further inspection activities. On
June 14 through 17,2Q10, the inspectors conducted a focused review of work performed
at each NRC-licensed Entergy site to assess whether examples of missed QC
verification inspections identified by Entergy during their review had the potential to have
impacted the operability of important plant equipment. The inspectors also reviewed the
corrective action database and maintenance records to independently assess the rigor
of the Entergy review and to identify additional examples of missed QC verification
inspections. The inspectors identified no additional examples, and concluded that the
Entergy reviews were sufficient to identify the scope of the problems and develop
actions to address the causes.

The inspectors reviewed specific work items whose scope met QAPM requirements to
have had QC verification inspections but did not have the appropriate inspections.
Based in part on interviews with Entergy personnel, the inspectors determined that
procedural guidance for work planning was not sufficiently detailed or clear to ensure
that work packages with construction-like activities would be reviewed by the specified
QC personnel. These individuals were responsible for designating the QC inspections
that were required by the QAPM.

The inspectors also identified numerous CRs written at Entergy sites that documented
improper implementation of QC verification inspections. Specific CRs are listed in the
attachment.

Analvsis: The failure to ensure that adequate Quality Control verification inspections
were included in quality-affecting procedures and work instructions as required by the
Quality Assurance Program was a performance deficiency. This programmatic
deficiency, if left uncorrected, could lead to a more significant safety concern; in that, the
failure to check quality attributes could involve an actual impact to plant equipment. This
issue affected the Design Control attribute of the Mitigating Systems cornerstone
because missed quality control inspections during plant modifications could impact the
availability, reliability, and capability of systems needed to respond to initiating events.
This performance deficiency was determined to have very low safety significance since it

was confirmed to involve a qualification deficiency that did not result in a loss of
operability or functionality. Specifically, inspectors verified by sampling that work
documents provided objective quality evidence that work activities that had missed
quality control verifications were properly performed.

The inspectors determined that this issue had a cross-cutting aspect in the Human
Performance cross-cutting area, Decision-Making component, because the licensee did
not have an effective systematic process for obtaining interdisciplinary reviews of
proposed work instructions to determine whether Quality Control verification inspections
were appropriate [H.1 (a)].
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Enforcement: 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion X, "lnspection," requires, in part,

that, "Examinations, measurements, or tests of material... shall be performed for each
work operation where necessary to assure quality . . . lf mandatory inspection hold
points, which require witnessing or inspecting by the licensee's designated
representative and beyond which work shall not proceed without the consent of the
designated representative are required, the specific hold points shall be indicated in

appropriate documents."

Entergy's QAPM, Revision 20, Section 8.12, "lnspection," requires, in part, that,
"Provisions to ensure inspection planning is properly accomplished are to be
established. Planning activities are to identify the characteristics and activities to be
inspected, the inspection techniques, the acceptance criteria, and the organization
responsible for performing the inspection. Provisions to identify inspection hold points,
beyond which work is not to proceed without consent of the inspection organization, are
to be defined."

Contrary to the above, from February 2006, to December 2009, the licensee failed to
ensure that examinations, measurements, or tests of material were performed for each
work operation where necessary to assure quality, and failed to include mandatory
inspection hold points in appropriate documents. Specifically, multiple examples of
Maintenance Work Orders and Engineering Change documents for construction-related
activities involving safety-related systems structures and components were identified
where witnessing or inspections were required to be performed to ensure quality, but
these steps were not identified, included in the work documents, or performed as
required QC hold points in the work instructions. Condition reports documenting the
specific problems and examples of the violation included:

cR-wY-2009-04496;
cR-wY-2011-00073;
cR-HQN-2009-01083;
cR-HQN-2009-01084;
cR-HQN-2009-01085;
cR-HQN-2009-01093;
OR-HQN-2009-01096;
OR-HQN-2009-01 140;
cR-HQN-2009-01 169;
CR-HQN-2009-01170;
CR-HQN-2009-01 1 84; and
cR-HQN-2009-01 188

Because this issue was of very low safety significance and was entered into the CAP as
CR-HQN 2009-01184 and CR-HQN-2010-0013, this violation is being treated as an
NCV, consistent with Section 2.3.2.a of the NRC's Enforcement Policy (NGV
0500027112010005-01, Failure to Perform Required Quality Control Inspections).
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b.2 Failure to lmplement the Experience and Qualification Requirements Associated With
the Qualitv Assurance Proqram

Introduction: The inspectors identified a Green NCV of 10 CFR 50, Appendix B,

Criterion ll, "Quality Assurance Program," for the failure to implement the experience and
qualification requirements of the Quality Assurance Program. As a result, the licensee
failed to ensure that two individuals assigned to the position of Quality Assurance
Manager met the qualification and experience requirements of ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978 as
required by the Quality Assurance Program.

Description: During their review of the issues surrounding the improper implementation
of quality control (QC) verifications discussed above, the inspectors noted that the root
cause analysis documented in CR-HQN-2O10-0013 identified that lack of experience of
the Quality Assurance (QA) Manager contributed to the failure to identify the trend in
missed QC verification inspections. The inspectors reviewed the relevant experience
and qualifications of the QA Manager at each Entergy site. The inspectors also
reviewed the NRC's safety evaluation report that approved Entergy's original corporate
Quality Assurance Program Manual (QAPM), which is the document that contains the
QA Program. Additionally, the inspectors reviewed the administrative section of the
Technical Specifications for all the Entergy sites and a sample of evaluations, performed
in accordance with 10 CFR 50.54(a), that supported Entergy QAPM changes and
alignment of plants that were subsequently purchased by Entergy.

The Entergy corporate QAPM required each site to meet the experience and
qualification standards in ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978, "American National Standard for
Selection and Training of Nuclear Power Plant Personnel." Section 4.4 included
qualification and experience requirements for the personnel described as "group
leaders" of five professionaltechnical groups, including Quality Assurance. Section
4..4.5, "Quality Assurance," required that ".. .the responsible person shall have six years
experience in the field of quality assurance, preferably at an operating nuclear plant, or
operations supervisory experience. At least one year of this six years experience shall
be nuclear power plant experience in the overall implementation of the quality assurance
program. (This experience shall be obtained within the quality assurance organization)."

On December 15, 2008, procedure EN-QV-1 17, "Oversight Training Program," used by
all Entergy sites to implement the requirements of ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978, was revised by
the Entergy corporate QA group. Section 5.7, "Manager/QA Senior Auditor Training,"
was changed to state:

Either the QA Manager or the Senior QA Auditor will meet the requirements of
ANS 3.1 -1978 paragraph 4.4.5 for operating plants and if applicable ANS 3.1-
1993 paragraph 4.3.7 for new plants.

The inspectors reviewed completed Personnel Change Planning ChecklisVForms for QA
Managers at each site. Entergy used this form to evaluate QA Manager candidates prior
to the implementation of an Entergy fleet-wide restructuring in July 2007. Attachment 8,
"Change Management Guidelines for Alignment lmplementation," included the following
conclusion for the individual that subsequently was assigned to be the QA Manager:
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findividual's name redacted] meets the minimum requirements for QA Manager
with the exception of at least one year of this six years experience shall be
nuclear power plant experience in the overall implementation of the quality
assurance program. This requirement must be met by the QA Senior Auditor.

Based on discussions with Entergy corporate QA personnel, the inspectors determined
that Entergy personnel had interpreted ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978, Sections 4.4 and 4.4.5 to
allow the Senior Auditor to be considered the QA group leader described in the standard
for purposes of meeting the experience requirements of Section 4.4.5 in cases where a
candidate for the position of QA Manager did not satisfy the experience requirements.

In reviewing this issue, the NRC staff has determined that the group leader in this case
is the individual filling the position assigned responsibility for overall implementation of
the QA Program (Entergy used the title "QA Manager" for this position). The individual
meeting the experience and qualification requirements must be the individual assigned
the responsibilities for overall implementation of the QA Program assigned within the QA
Program.

The inspectors determined that this change to procedure EN-QV-117 did not ensure that
the qualifications for the QA Manager would meet the requirements of standard. The
inspectors identified two examples where the Senior Auditor was credited as being the
group leader for purposes of meeting ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978, and the individuals who were
assigned as the QA Manager did not meet the ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978 experience
requirements. The team also determined that the responsibilities assigned to the QA
Manager under the QAPM were not reassigned to the Senior Auditor, and the Senior
Auditor did not report directly to the designated senior executive. The Senior Auditor
continued to report to the QA Manager, so the person with the greater experience did
not have the positional authority to decide issues.

Analysis: The failure to ensure that an individual assigned to the position of Quality
Assurance Manager met the qualification and experience requirements of
ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978 as required by the Quality Assurance Program was a performance
deficiency. This performance deficiency was determined to be more than minor
because, if left uncorrected, it could create a more significant safety concern. Failure to
have a fully qualified individual providing overall oversight to the QA Program had the
potential to affect all cornerstones, but this finding will be tracked under the Mitigating
Systems cornerstone as the area most likely to be impacted. The issue was not suitable
for quantitative significance determination, so it was assessed using IMC 0609,
Appendix M, and was evaluated using the qualitative criteria listed in Table 4.1. This
finding was determined to be of very low safety significance because other quality
assurance program functions remained unaffected by this performance deficiency, so
defense-in-depth continued to exist. The inspectors determined that there was no cross-
cutting aspect associated with this finding because this issue was not indicative of
current performance as it occurred more than three years ago.

Enforcement: Appendix B to 10 CFR 50, Criterion ll, "Quality Assurance Program,"
requires, in part, that the licensee establish a quality assurance program which complies
with Appendix B. This program shall be documented by written policies, procedures, or
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instructions and shall be carried out throughout plant life in accordance with those
policies, procedures, or instructions. The program shall provide for indoctrination and
training of personnel performing activities affecting quality as necessary to assure that
suitable proficiency is achieved and maintained.

The Entergy Quality Assurance Program Manual, Revision 13, is the document used at
each Entergy-owned site to describe the quality assurance program. Table 1, Section A
of the Quality Assurance Program Manual states, in part, that qualifications and
experience for station personnel shall meet ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978 except for positions
where an exception to either ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978 or N18.1-1971 is stated in the
applicable unit's Technical Specifications.

ANSI/ANS 3.1-1978, Section 4.4.5, "Quality Assurance," states, in part, that the
responsible person'(i.e. the Quality Assurance Manager) shall have six years experience
in the field of quality assurance. At least one year of this six years experience shall be
obtained within the quality assurance organization.

Contrary to the above, between October 1, 2006, and June 2OO7 , and again between
July 7, 2007, and July 8, 2008, the licensee failed to implement the quality assurance
program requirements intended to provide indoctrination and training of personnel
performing activities affecting quality as necessary to assure that suitable proficiency
was achieved and maintained. Specifically, the individuals assigned to be the
responsible person for the licensee's overall implementation of the Quality Assurance
Program did not have at least one year of nuclear plant experience in the overall
implementation of the Quality Assurance Program within the quality assurance
organization prior to assuming those responsibilities. Because this issue was of very low
safety significance and was entered into the CAP as CR-HQN-2010-00386, this violation
is being treated as an NCV consistent with Section 2.3.2.a of the NRC's Enforcement
Policy. (NCV 0500027112010005-02, Failure to lmplement the Experience and
Qualification Requirements of the Quality Assurance Program).

Event Follow-up (7 1 153)

Operator Performance Durino Rod Pattern Adiustment

Inspection Scope (1 sample)

The inspectors observed an infrequently performed evolution on November 6, 2010.
Specifically, the inspectors observed a planned plant downpower for a rod pattern
adjustment. The inspectors observed the operators reduce power by lowering
recirculation flow and inserting control rods. The inspectors reviewed procedural
guidance contained in OP-O105, "Reactor Operations," Revision 88, the power
maneuver plan, and observed the pre-job brief, control room conduct, and control of the
evolutions.

Findinqs and Observations

No findings or observations were identified.
Enclosure
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4OA5 Other Activities

.1 Independent Spent Fuel Storaqe Installation (lSFSl) Monitorino Controls (60855)

a. Inspection Scope

The inspector reviewed routine operations and monitoring of the lSFSl. The inspector
performed a walkdown of the ISFSI; observed lhe condition of the storage modules
including the air cooling ventilation openings; performed independent dose rate
measurements of the storage modules; and confirmed twice daily module temperature
readings for the month of September 2010 were within the required Certificate of
Compliance temperature limits.

b. Findinqs

No findings were identified.

4OAO Meetinqs. includinq Exit

Exit Meetinq Summarv

On January 10,2011, the inspectors presented the results of the Selected lssue Follow-
up Inspection of quality assurance and quality control issues to Mr. P. Corbett, Manager,
Quality Assurance, and other members of the licensee staff. The inspectors confirmed
that no proprietary information was provided or examined during the inspection.

On January 24,2011, the resident inspectors presented the fourth quarter inspection
results to Mr. Norman Rademacher, Director of Engineering, and other members of the
Vermont Yankee staff. The inspectors confirmed that no proprietary information was
provided or examined during the inspection.

40 A7 Licensee-ldentified Violations

The following violation of very low safety significance (Green) was identified by the
licensee and is a violation of NRC requirements, which meets the criteria of the NRC
Enforcement Policy for being dispositioned as an NCV:

Procedure, EN-QV-1 1 1, "Training and Certification of InspectionA/erification and
Examination Personnel," Section 4.0 [4](i), requires that the Entergy corporate ANSI
Level lll inspector shall perform periodic (annual) surveillances of quality control
inspection activities to ensure that the program is being adequately implemented and
maintained. Contrary to the above, no surveillances of quality control inspection
activities were performed for any Entergy site during calendar year 2008. The issue
was not suitable for quantitative significance determination, so it was assessed using
IMC 0609, Appendix M, and was evaluated using the qualitative criteria listed in
Table 4.1. This finding was determined to be of very low safety significance because
other quality assurance program functions remained unaffected by this performance
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deficiency, so defense-in-depth continued to exist. This issue was entered into the
licensee's CAP as CR-HQN-2009-001 1 1.

ATTACHMENT: SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
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SUPPLEMENTAL I NFORMATION

KEY POINTS OF CONTACT

Vermont Yankee Personnel
M. Colomb, Site Vice President
C. Wamser, General Manager of Plant Operations
M. Romeo, Director of Nuclear Safety
R. Wanczyk, Licensing Manager
J. Devincentis, Sr. Licensing Engineer
N. Rademacher, Director of Engineering
M. Gosekamp, Operations Manager
J. Rogers, Design Engineering Manager
C. Daniels, Superintendent, FIN Team
D. Jones, Asst. Operations Manager
V. Ferrizzi, Shift Manager
D.Deer, Field Support Supervisor
M. McKenney, Emergency Preparedness Manager
K. O'Neil, Work Control Planner
J. Ward, Superintendent, l+C Maintenance
J. Stasolla, Sr. System Engineer
P. Stello, Sr. Electrical l&C System Engineer
J. Anderson, Process Computer Engineer
T. Stetson, Sr. Reactor Engineer
R. Current, Sr. Electrical l&C System Engineer
M. Anderson, Fire Protection Engineer
L. Doucette, EFIN Engineer
S. Jonasch, Sr. System Engineer
B. Neack, Sr. System Engineer
P. Corbett, Quality Assurance Manager
P. Couture, Licensing Specialist
L. Derting, Supervisor, Radwaste
J. Geyster, Superintendent, Radiation Protection
M. Tessier, Maintenance Manager
J. Hardy, Chemistry Manager
M. Morgan, Superintendent, Training
S. Skibniowski, Environmental Specialist
P. Stover, Supervisor, Radiation Protection
D. Tkatch, Manager, Radiation Protection
K. Stupak, Training Manager
D. Jeffries, Sr. System Engineer
T. Horner, Contractor
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LIST OF ITEMS OPENED, CLOSED, AND DISCUSSED

Ooened and Closed

0500027112010005-01 Ncv
Failure to Perform Required
Quality Control Inspections
(Section 4OA2)

Failure to lmplement the
Experience and
Qualification Requirements
of the Quality Assurance
Program (Section 4OA2)

05000271t2010005-02 Ncv

Closed
None

Discussed
None

LIST OF DOCUMENTS REVIEWED

ln addition to the documents identified in the body of this report, the inspectors reviewed the
following documents and records:

Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station Updated Final Safety Analysis Report
Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station Technical Specifications
Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station Narrative Logs, Night Orders, and Standing Orders

* Denotes creation as a result of NRC inspection

Section 1R01. Adverse Weather Protection
Procedures
OP 2196, "Seasonal Preparedness," Rev. 31

Section 1R04: Equipment Alisnment
Procedures
OP 2115, "Primary Containment," Rev. 80
OP 2121, "Reactor Core lsolation Cooling System," Rev.55
OP 2124, "Residual Heat Removal System," Rev. 114
QP 2143, "480 and Lower Voltage AC System," Rev. 120
OP 2181, "service Water/Alternate Cooling Operating Procedure," Rev. 1 12
EOP-1, "RPV Control," Rev. 3

Drawinqs
G-191159, "Flow Diagram Service Water System," Rev. 76, sheet 1

G-191 159, "Flow Diagram Service Water System," Rev. 91, sheet 2
G-191 172,"Flow Diagram Residual Heat Removal System," Rev 69, sheet 1
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G-191174,"F\ow Diagram Reactor Core lsolation Cooling System," Rev. 44, sheet 1

G-191174,"F\ow Diagram Reactor Core lsolation Cooling System," Rev. 23, sheet 2

Condition Reports
2007-02401 2010-02564 2010-02952 2010-03731 2010-03192
2010-04862 2010-05229 2010-05371 2010-05437

Work Orders
00228806

Miscellaneous
Residual Heat Removal System Health Report 3'o Quarter 2Q10, Rev. 0
Reactor Core lsolation Cooling System Heatth Report 3'o Quarter 2010, Rev. 0
1CFR50.59 Evaluation Form 2010-01 Change to Containment lsolation Valve Designation for

V10-394/8, Rev.0

Section 1R05: Fire Protection
Procedures
OP 3126, "Shutdown Using Alternate Shutdown Methods, " Rev. 42
OP 3020, "Fire Emergency Response Procedure," Rev. 54
OP 4019 "Surveillance of Plant Fire Barriers and Fire Rated Assemblies," Rev. 26

Miscellaneous Documents
"Fire Hazards Analysis," App. B, Rev. 11

FPEE-62, "Fire Door Baseline lnspection"
PFP-CB-1, "Prefire Plan for Fire Area ASD-1," Rev. 0
PFP-RB-7, "Prefire Plan for Fire Zone RB-3," Rev. 0
PFP-RB-9, "Prefire Plan for Fire Zone RB-15," Rev. 0
PFP-RB-1 1, "Prefire Plan for Fire Zone RB-1," Rev. 0

Section 1R06. Flood Protection Measures
Procedures
EN-DC-346, "Cable Reliability Program," Rev. 0

Miscellaneous
GL 2007-01, "lnaccessible or Underground Power Cable Failures that Disable Accident

Mitigation Systems or Cause Plant Transients" 2/712007 and Vermont Yankee's
413012007 response

Section 1Rl1: Licensed Operator Requalification Prosram
Procedures
EN-EP-308, "Emergency Planning Critiques," Rev. 0

Miscellaneous
1012012010 ERO Team 'A' Drill Scenario Storyboard, Rev. 00
ERO Team'A' Drill Report
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Section 1 R12: Maintenance Effectiveness
Condition Reports
2007-04789 2008-00059 2008-02556 2009-03251 2009-04479
2010-00044 2010-01273 2010-01514

Work Orders
52186002
52203649

Procedures
EN-DC-205, "Maintenance Rule Monitoring," Rev. 2
EN-DC-206, "Maintenance Rule (aX1) Process," Rev. 1

EN-WM-102, "Work lmplementation and Closeout," Rev. 4

Miscellaneous Documents
Process Radiation Monitors Performance History Report 1 1 | 1 12007 -1 0131 1201 O

VYSE-MRL-2O10-014 "Performance Evaluation for Continuous Air Monitors Subsystem," Rev. 0
W Maintenance Rule - State of the System Report 1013112010

Section 1Rl3: Maintenance Risk Assessments and Emergent Work Control
Procedures
AP 0172,"Work Schedule Risk Management - Online," Rev. 22
OP 3126, "shutdown using Alternate Shutdown Methods," Rev. 41

Condition Reports
2010-04985
2010-05020

Miscellaneous Documents
VY EOOS Risk Assessment for 10125 - 1111

Online Maintenance Safety Assessment Review 11122 - 11128
Equipment Out-of-Service Risk Assessment tool
Work Week 1047 Online schedule

Section 1R15: Operabilitv Evaluations
Procedures
EN-OP-1 04, "Operability Determination," Rev. 4
EMST-BATT-4210-02, "Quarterly Surveillance of Safety Related Lead Acid Storage

Batteries."Rev. 0
Work Orders
52242381
52241288

Section 1 R19: Post-Maintenance Testinq
Procedures
OP 4121, "Residual Heat Removal and RHR Service Water Surveillance," Rev. 1 17

OP 4308, "Average Power Range Monitor Calibration," Rev. 29
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OP 4400, "Calibration of the Average Power Range Monitoring System to Core Thermal Power,"
Rev.29

Condition Reports
cR 2010-4881

Work Orders
00257641 52241593 52237005 52254485 52237010
52268002 51079777 52268796 52266665 52266674
52267993 52266662 52268796 5224646 00248984
52265338 522968002 52267991 00194091 51079727
52267901 0Q251777

Miscellaneous
VYOPF 4121.05, RCIC Pump Operability and Full Flow Test," Rev. 82
"A" RHRyRHRSW LCO Maintenance Plan November 1, 2010 - November 5, 2010

Section 1R20: Refuelins and Outase Activities
Procedures
OP 0105, "Reactor Operations," Rev. 88
OP 2124, "Residual Heat Removal System," Rev. 114
DP 0455, "Reactor Engineering Startup Plan - Beginning of Cycle and Mid-Cycle," Rev. 29

Miscellaneous
Work Hour Violation Report 1117 - 11113
Estimated Startup Timeline - Nov. 2010
Outage Schedule Risk Assessment and Management Worksheet 11l8l1o - 11l9l1o
Critical Outage Safety Systems Status 1118110,1119110

Section 1 R22: Surveillance Testinq
Condition Reports
2010-05245
2010-05253

Procedures
OP 4120, "High Pressure Coolant Injection System Surveillance," Rev. 81

OP 4424, "Control Rod Scram Testing and Data Reduction," Rev. 44

Miscellaneous Documents
RR-PO2, "10CFR 50.55a Request for HPCI Pump Inservice Testing"

Section 2RS08:Radioactive Solid Waste Processins and Radioactive Material Handlins.
Storage and Transportation

Condition Reports:
2008-03944 2008-14021 2009-02057 2010-03061 2010-04021
2010-04317
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Procedures:
EN-RW-101, Rev. 2, "Radioactive Waste Management"
EN-RW-102, Rev. 7, "Radioactive Shipping Procedure"
EN-RW-103, Rev. 3, "Radioactive Waste Tracking Procedure"
EN-RW-104, Rev. 7, "Scaling Factors"
EN-RW-105, Rev. 1, "Process Control Program"
EN-RW-106, Rev. 2, "lntegrated Transportation Security Plan"
EN-RP-121-01, Rev. 0, "Receipt of Radioactive Material"
RPRP-RW-2511, Rev. 2, "Radwaste Gask/Liner Handling"
QP -2512, Rev. 8, "Radioactive Material/Radioactive Waste Packaging"
QA Audit Report QA-1 41 1 5-2009-VY- 1, Radiation Protection/Radwaste
QA Surveillance Reports: QS-2009-VY-015; QS-201 0-VY-009
QA Observations: February, 2,2009; August 24,2010

Section 4OA1: Performance lndicator (Pl) Verification
Procedures
AP 0094, NRC Performance Indicator Reporting, Rev. 15
EN-LI-1 14, Pertormance Indicator Process, Rev. 4

Section 4OA2: Problem ldentification and Resolution
NDT Examination Reports
UT 09-007, Ultrasonic Examination of weld #1 I inch Service Water (SW) Component 801
UT 09-015, Ultrasonic Examination of weld #6 8 inch SW, Component 801
RT Weld#1 @ Elevation 343, 8" Stainless Steel Pipe Butt Weld, ENN-NDE1006-R1
RT Weld#4 @ Elevation 343, 8" Stainless Steel Pipe Butt Weld, ENN'NDE1006-R1

NDT Examination Procedures
ENN-NDE-9.05, "Ultrasonic Thickness Examination of Stainless Steel, " R1

Condition Reports
Condition Reports from June 2010 to December 2010
2009-00500 2009-00238 2009-01696 2010-03488 2010-1555

Calculations
EC 13131 Calculation WC-3080, ASME Code Case N-513 Evaluation of extent of condition

Ultrasonic Test (UT) examinations of service water (SW) supply and return lines (Lot 1)
EC 13392 Calculation VYC-3080, Extent of condition UT examination of supply and return lines

(Sample Lot 2) Stand-By Fuel Pool Cooling System (SFPC)
EC 13803 Calculation VYC-3080, Extent of condition UT examination of supply and return lines

(Sample Lot 3) SFPC system
EC 14072 Calculation VYC-3080, Extent of condition UT examination of supply and return lines

(Sample Lot 4) SFPC system
EC 14395 Sample Lot 5 of extent of condition samples were examined by radiographic test (RT)

and allfound to be acceptable
EC 14651 Calculation VYC-3080, Extent of condition UT examination of supply and return lines

(Sample Lot 6) SFPC system
EC16328 Standby Fuel Pool Cooling Heat Exchanger SW Piping Replacement
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EC 17444 Design of chemical treatment and additional piping loop of SFPC
VYC 869 Evaluation of Piping Stresses for new piping configuration of SFPC system

Miscellaneous
Corrective Action Plan for lnvestigation and Repair of SFPCS SW (REF CR-WY-2009-00500

and WY-2009-00238)
Corrective Action Plan for tracking of corrective actions (LO-WTWY-2010-0020, CA-04)
PP 7601 R3 Program Procedure-Service Water ChemicalTreatment and Monitoring Program
1't, 2nd, 3'd Quarter 2010, Service Water System Chemical Treatment & Monitoring Reports
Apparent Cause Evaluation (ACE) for Leakage identified in the SW supply and return for the

stand-by Fuel Pool Cooling System (SBFPC)
EN-LI-100 R7 Operability Evaluation for CR-WY-2009-00500 R0
DWG G191159 R80 Flow Diagram Service Water System
DWG G191173 R8 Flow Diagram Fuel Pool Cooling & Clean Up System
SW System MIC Index Status as of 08/05/10
Vermont Yankee Service Water System Long Range Plan, Revision 4
Service Water System Health Reports (2009 and 2010)
Welding Procedure Specification (WPS) BM-8i1-A R2, manual gas tungsten arc welding and

shielded metal arc welding of carbon steel to stainless steel

Comoleted Surveillances
EMST-BATf -4210-02, Quarterly Surveillance of Safety Related Lead Acid Storage Batteries,

Completed 711109,718109, 9129109, 1018109, 12128109, 114110,3131110, 416110,711110,

7 161 10, 91281 10, 1 0/5/1 0
OP 4209, UPS Battery Performance Test Battery B-UPS-1A, Completed 10129108

OP 4209, UPS Battery Performance Test Battery B-UPS-18, Completed 10l29lOB

Condition Reports
2008-00815 2008-03423 2009-03314 2009-03463 2009-03645
2010-03486 2010-04732 2010-04991 2010-05267* 2A10-05269.
201 0-05288"
0R-ANO-1-2009-02330
CR-ANO-C-2009-01884
cR-ANO-C-2009-02608
CR-AN0-2-2010-00028
cR-JAF-2008-03648
CR-HQN-2010-001 1 1

cR-HQN-2009-00178
cR-HQN-2009-01083
cR-HQN-2009-01084
cR-HQN-2009-01085
cR-HQN-2009-01091
cR-HQN-2009-01093
CR-HON-2009-01096
GR-HQN-2009-01140
cR-HQN-2009-01 150

CR-ANO-2O10-01503
CR-ANO-1 -201A-01724
oR-ANO-1 -2010-01182

cR-JAF-2009-04592
cR-HQN-2009-01 188
CR-HQN-2009-01 197
CR-HQN-2010-00013
cR-HQN-2010-00386
cR-HQN-2010-00571
cR-HQN-2010-00593
cR-HON-2010-00515
OR-HQN-2010-00550
GR-HQN-2o10-00s11
cR-HQN-2010-00510

CR-ANO-1-2010-00743
CR-ANO-1-2010-01080
CR-ANO-1-2010-00719

oR-JAF-2010-03280
cR-HQN-2010-00415
cR-HON-2010-00333
CR-HON-2010-00123
cR-HQN-2010-00109
cR-HON-2010-00068
cR-HQN-2010-00063
cR-HQN-2010-00045
cR-HQN-2010-00060
CR-HQN-2009-01198
cR-HQN-2009-01 194
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oR-HQN-2009-01 169

CR-HQN-2009-01 170
CR-HQN-2009-01 184

cR-lP2-2010-04085
cR-lP3-2010-01740
cR-tP2-2010-03985
cR-rP2-2010-03986
cR-tP2-2010-03988
cR-tP2-2010-03984
cR-rP3-2009-04903
cR-tP3-2009-04905

cR-PLP-2009-04108
cR-PLP-2009-05613
CR-PLP-2009-05918
cR-PLP-2009-05908

cR-PNP-2009-01798
cR-PNP-2009-02059
cR-PNP-2009-02255
cR-PNP-2008-00916

cR-RBS-2008-04685
cR-RBS-2009-05041
oR-RBS-2009-06123
cR-RBS-2009-06446
cR-RBS-2009-06451
cR-RBS-2009-06471
cR-R85-2009-06473
cR-RBS-2009-06490
cR-RBS-2010-00044

cR-wF3-2010-01 198
cR-wF3-2010-01356
cR-wF3-2010-00746

cR-wY-2009-04496
cR-wY-2o10-01479
cR-wY-2o10-02759

cR-GGN-2010-04140
cR-GGN-2010-02730

A8

CR-HQN-2010-00475
cR-HQN-2010-00499
cR-HQN-2010-00338

cR-tP3-2009-04917
cR-rP3-2009-04920
cR-tP3-2009-04897
cR-tP2-2009-05404
cR-tP2-2009-05409
cR-tP3-2009-04868
cR-rP3-2009-04883
cR-rP3-2009-04884

cR-PLP-2010-02288
cR-PLP-2010-02290
cR-PLP-2009-05942

cR-PNP-2008-03922
cR-PNP-2009-05359
CR-PNP-2010-00015

CR-RBS-2010-01472
cR-RBS-2010-02033
cR-RBS-2010-00200
cR-RBS-2010-0Q221
cR-RBS-2o10-00278
cR-RBS-2010-00088
CR-RBS-2010-0001 1

cR-RBS-2009-06520
cR-RBS-2009-06539

cR-wF3-2010-00284
cR-wF3-2009-07713

cR-wY-2o't0-04432
cR-wY-2010-04434

CR-GGN-2010-02135
cR-GGN-2010-02382

cR-HQN-2010-00594
CR-HQN-2009-01 171

cR-HQN-2009-01153

cR-lP2-2009-05393
cR-tP2-2009-05399
cR-rP2-2009-05400
cR-lP2-2009-05389
cR-tP2-2009-05349
cR-rP2-2009-05348
cR-lP2-2009-05321

cR-PLP-2009-05909
cR-PLP-2010-02012
cR-PLP-2009-05897

cR-PNP-2009-05303
cR-PNP-2009-05297
cR-PNP-2010-02124

CR-RBS-2010-00006
cR-RBS-2009-06472
cR-RBS-2009-06495
cR-RBS-2009-06456
cR-RBS-2009-06450
cR-RBS-2009-06452
cR-RBS-2009-06158
cR-RBS-2009-06209
cR-RBS-2009-06449

cR-wF3-2009-Q7711
cR-wF3-2010-02629

cR-wY-2o10-04496
cR-wY-2o10-00070

cR-GGS-2009-06921
cR-GGS-2009-06922
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AP 0019, Control of Temporary or Portable Materials, Rev. 26
EMMP-BATT-4210-21, Equdize Charges and General Battery Maintenance, Rev.

CR-GGN-2010-04178
CR-GGN-2010-04101
cR-GGN-2010-04092
cR-GGN-2010-03674
CR-GGN-2010-03721
cR-GGN-2010-03900
cR-GGN-2010-03451
cR-GGN-2010-03492

CR-ANO-1-2009-02330

Procedures

EN-Lr-121

EN-MA-102

EN-QV-1OO

EN-QV-109

EN-QV-109-02

EN-QV-1 11

EN-QV-117

EN-QV-119

EN-QV-123

EN-QV-128

EN-QV-129

ANO-EC-o7032
05885
ANO-EC-02886
EC-09121
ANO-EC-03069
EC-12392
ANO-EC-04461
EC-14181
ANO-EC-08043
EC-18042
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cR-GGN-2010-02902
cR-GGN-2010-00590
cR-GGN-2010-01247
cR-GGN-2010-01252
cR-GGN-2009-06575
cR-GGS-2009-06907
cR-GGS-2009-06920

CR-ANO-2O10-01503

cR-GGS-2009-06923
cR-GGS-2009-06927
cR-GGS-2009-06806
CR-GGN-2010-00164
cR-GGN-2009-06904
cR-GGN-2009-06910
cR-GGN-2009-06505

CR-ANO-1-2010-00743

Entergy Trending Process

lnspection Program

Conduct of Nuclear Oversight

Audit Process

Audit Process Guidance

Training and Certification of InspectionA/erification and
Examination Personnel

Oversight Training Program

Corrective Action Requests, Supplier Stop Work Orders, and
Recommendations

Supplier AuditsiSurveys

Assessments of Nuclear Oversight?

Vulnerability Review Process

Enqineerino Chanoes/Maintenance Work Orders

0

Rev I
Rev 3 and 4

Rev 4

Rev 16

Rev 0

Rev 8

Rev 9

Rev 6

Rev 3

Rev 2

Rev 1

RBS-EC-00893

RBS-EC-02692

RBS-EC-03275

RBS-EC-03643

RBS-EC-03850

RBS-EC-70734

GGN-EC-00085

GGN-EC-00224

GGN-EC-02048

GGN-EC-02058

GGN-EC-o1450

GGN-EC-o1452

GGN-EC-02048

GGN-EC-02065

GGN-EC-13326

PLP-EC-

PLP-

PLP-

PLP-

PLP-
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ANO-EC-00608 RBS-EC-03275 GGN-EC-02065 GGN-EC-13354 PLP-
EC-06553
WF3-EC-15451 RBS-EC-05932 GGN-EC-02107 GGN-EC-13355 PLP-
EC-12731
WF3-EC-10706 RBS-EC-06947 GGN-EC-02110 ANO U-1 EC 01039
WF3-EC-01830 RBS-EC-07239 GGN-EC-02201 ANO U-1 EC 05808
WF3-EC-07960 RBS-EC-08504 GGN-EC-02784 ANO U-1 EC 13153
WF3-EC-01166 RBS-EC-12204 GGN-EC-04538 ANO U-1 EC 00380
WF3-EC-09046 RBS-EC-13128 . GGN-EC-06299 ANO U-1 EC 05054
WF3-EC-00935 RBS-EC-16451 GGN-EC-06301 ANO U-1 EC 05388
WF3-EC-01166 RBS-EC-70752 GGN-EC-07471 ANO U-1 EC 06241
WF3-EC-01396 RBS-EC-07368 GGN-EC-07716 ANO U-1 EC 07032
WF3-EC-01782 RBS-EC-03852 GGN-EC-06875 ANO U-1 EC 13224
WF30EC-03013 RBS-EC-03853 GGN-EC-06039 WF3-EC-844881
WF3-EC-11284 RBS-EC-03975 GGN-EC-06086 WF3-EC-05854
WF3-EC-13981 RBS-EC-70733 GGN-EC-00494 VYT-EC-03138

Miscellaneous
US-FL-lOM-002, EnerSys vendor manual for Flooded Lead Acid Batteries, Dated 111107

VYC-1630, Battery Sizing Calculation for 400V DC UPS Batteries B-UPS-1A and
B-UPS-18, Rev. 2

EOI Letter Response to Request for lnformation, Revision 1 11il14
ENOC-10-00002

EOI Letter Response to Request for lnformation 11130110

ENOC-09-00037

QAPM Entergy QualityAssurance Program Manual 0 through 20

Regulatory Personnel Selection and Training 1

Guide 1.8
ANSI/ANS 3.1- American National Standard for Selection and Training of 1978

1978 Nuclear Power Plant Personnel

ANSI N18.1- American National Standard for Selection and Training of 1971

1971 Nuclear Power Plant Personnel

NRC SER NRC Safety Evaluation Report, "Entergy Operations, Inc. 1116198

Quality Assurance Program Consolidation"

Technical Unit Staff euali1cations various
Specification

5.3.1 Personnel Change Planning ChecklisUForms for QA July 2007
Manager Candidates

CEO2009-00195 Corporate ANSI Level lll Surveillance of W Maintenance 1211512009

lnspection Program MfY)

Attachmenl



All

EOI Letter Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station, Docket No. 50-271 0210512003
BVY 03-12 Annual Submittal of QAP Changes (WY)

CfN-2003/00059 Vermont Yankee, 10 CFR Part 50.54(aX3) Change Review 0412412002

EOI Letter No. Forms for QAPM Rev 8 (VfY)
cNRO-2003-013

EOI Letter No. Entergy Quality Assurance Program Manual, Rev. 8 (WY) 0412412003
cEXO-2003t164

EOI Letter NO. lssuance of Entergy Quality Assurance Program Manual 0412412003
CNRO-20021027 (OAPM) Revision 8 (WY)

10 CFR 50.59 Entergy Quality Assurance Program Manual, Revision 7 0412512002
Review Form (PNPS)

ENO Letter No. Entergy QA Program Manual, Revision 7 (PNPS) O5l02l2OO2
1.2.02-067

EN-QV-104 Entergy QA Program Manual, Revision 7 (PNPS) O7l3Ol2O82
Attachment 9.1 lndependent Spent Fuel Storage Installation
ENOC Letter Entergy QA Program Manual Change Review Form 04.0512007
NO. 07-0020 50.5a(a) Parts 1 ,2 and 3 (PLP)

AP-20.06, Entergy QA Program Manual, Revision 16, Annual Report 0411512007
Attachment 1 10 CFR 50.5a(a)(3) and10 CFR72.140(d) (PLP)

MCM-4.1 FSAR Change Request Form, Relocate QA Program from 0510612002
Attachment 4.1 Chapter 17 to Entergy QAPM (JAF)

AP-20.09 Nuclear Engineering 10 CFR 50.59 Screening Form (JAF) 04/0312002
Attachment 1

Entergy Letter Process Applicability Screening - Relocate QA Program 0410112002

JLIC-02-017 From FSAR Ch. 17 to Entergy QAPM (JAF)

ENO Letter Cross Reference of QAPM commitments to lmplementing 0410212002

1.2.02-060 procedures at JAF

Entergy Letter Adaptation of Entergy Common QAPM, Revision 7 (JAF) 0612112002

cNRO-2002-Q27

10 CFR 50.54(a) Entergy QA Program Manual, Revision 7 (JAF) 0412512002

Evaluation

ENO Letter QA Program Change/Prior Approval Determination - Part A 05/06/2002
1.2.02-060 (lP3)

Attachment



412

ENO Meeting Adaptation of Entergy Common QAPM, Revision 7, 0612112002
Summary (lP2 and lP3)

Development of Common QA Manual for northern Entergy 1113012001

Sites and Entergy Nuclear Generating Company Plants

Attachment



ACE
ADAMS
AP
ASME
CAP
CFR
CR
DOT
DRP
DRS
EC
ERO
GL
HAZ
HPCI
tcv
ISFSI
LOR
Mrc
MSPI
NDE
NDT
NEI
NRC
ODCM
ODMI
OP
PARS
PCP
PI
PI&D
PI&R
PMT
QA
QC
RCtC
RETS
RFO
RHR
RHRSW
RPV
RT
SFPC
SSCs

A13

LIST OF ACRONYMS

Apparent Cause Evaluation
Agencyruide Documents Access and Management System
Administrative Procedure
American Society of Mechanical Engineers
Corrective Action Program
Code of Federal Regulations
Condition Report
U.S. Department of Transportation
Division of Reactor Projects
Division of Reactor Safety
Engineering Change
Emergency Response Organization
Generic Letter
Heat Affected Zone
High Pressure Coolant lnjection
Individual Cell Voltages
Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation
Licensed Operator Requalification
Microbiolog ical I nfluenced ( | nduced ) Corrosion
Mitigating Systems Performance Index
Non-Destructive Exam ination
Non-Destructive Test
Nuclear Energy Institute
Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Offsite Dose Calculation Manual
Operational Decision Making lssue
Operating Procedure
Publicly Available Records System
Process Control Program
Performance Indicator
Piping and Instrumentation Drawing
Problem ldentification and Resolution
Post Maintenance Testing
Quality Assurance
Quatity Control
Reactor Core lsolation Cooling
Radiological Effluent Technical Specification
Refueling Outage
Residual Heat Removal
Residual Heal Removal Service Water
Reactor Pressure Vessel
Radiographic Test
Standby Fuel Pool Cooling
Structures, Systems and Components

Attachment



A.14

SW Service Water
TS Technical Specification
UPS Uninterruptible Power Supply
UFSAR Updated Final Safety Analysis Report
UT Ultrasonic Test
VY Vermont Yankee
WO Work Order
WPS Weld Procedure Specification
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